

E 202  
.3  
.C73  
1918  
Copy 1

# Connecticut Society

Sons of the American  
Revolution

MANUAL  
1917-1918



The Connecticut Society  
of the  
Sons of the American Revolution



Constitution and By-Laws

---

Membership Roll

to

January 1, 1918

Ex. 1  
3  
1918

Ch  
The Society  
FEB 19 1918

BOARD OF MANAGERS.

Elected June 14, 1917.

---

"There shall be a Board of Managers whose duty it shall be to conduct the affairs of the Society, which Board shall consist of the officers of this Society, the delegates to the National Society, the Secretaries of the several branches of this Society *ex officio*, and fifteen others."

PRESIDENT.

CLARENCE W. WICKHAM, . . . . . Hartford.

VICE-PRESIDENT.

GEORGE F. BURGESS, . . . . . New Haven.

SECRETARY-TREASURER.

CHARLES G. STONE, . . . . . P. O. Box 847, Hartford.

REGISTRAR.

FREDERICK BOSTWICK, . . . . . No. 144 Grove St., New Haven.

HISTORIAN.

FRANK E. GAY, . . . . . Hartford.

CHAPLAIN.

REV. WM. DE LOSS LOVE, . . . . . Hartford.

NECROLOGIST.

LEVERETT BELKNAP, . . . . . Hartford.

AUDITORS.

FREDERICK W. HALL, . . . . . Bridgeport.

SAMUEL F. BEARDSLEY, . . . . . Bridgeport.

## DELEGATES TO NATIONAL CONVENTION AND THE FIFTEEN.

GEN. E. S. GREELEY ( <i>ex-officio</i> ), . . . . .	New Haven
MORRIS B. BEARDSLEY ( <i>ex-officio</i> ), . . . . .	Bridgeport.
JONATHAN TRUMBULL, . . . . .	Norwich.
LEWIS B. CURTIS, . . . . .	Bridgeport.
DR. GEORGE C. F. WILLIAMS ( <i>Delegate at large</i> ),	Hartford
WILSON H. LEL, . . . . .	New Haven.
FRANK A. CORBIN, . . . . .	New Haven.
GEN. GEORGE H. FORD, . . . . .	New Haven.
SEYMOUR C. LOOMIS, . . . . .	New Haven.
EARNEST C. SIMPSON, . . . . .	New Haven.
WILLIAM S. WELLS, . . . . .	New Haven.
ROLLIN S. WOODRUFF, . . . . .	New Haven.
SAMUEL F. BEARDSLEY, . . . . .	Bridgeport.
ISAAC W. BIRDSEY, . . . . .	Bridgeport.
ORLANDO H. BROTHWELL, . . . . .	Bridgeport.
HENRY C. SHERWOOD, . . . . .	Bridgeport.
TRACY B. WARREN, . . . . .	Bridgeport.
LOUIS R. CHENEY, . . . . .	Hartford.
CHARLES HOPKINS CLARK, . . . . .	Hartford.
JOHN M. PARKER, JR., . . . . .	Hartford.
ALFRED SPENCER, JR., . . . . .	Hartford.
HERBERT H. WHITE, . . . . .	Hartford.
MARTIN WELLES, . . . . .	Hartford.
HARRY R. WILLIAMS, . . . . .	Hartford.
ELI C. BIRDSEY, . . . . .	Meriden.
EDGAR J. DOOLITTLE, . . . . .	Meriden.
H. WALES LINES, . . . . .	Meriden.
CHARLES L. ROCKWELL, . . . . .	Meriden.
ALBERT F. CORBIN, . . . . .	New Britain.
ANDREW J. SLOPER, . . . . .	New Britain.
ALFRED COIT, . . . . .	New London.
ERNEST E. ROGERS, . . . . .	New London.
FRANK E. BLAKEMAN, . . . . .	Oronogue.
L. WHEELER BEECHER, . . . . .	Westville.
MERRITT HEMINWAY, . . . . .	Watertown.
W. THOMAS WOODRUFF, . . . . .	Thomaston.

WILLIAM H. BURR, . . . . .	Westport.
WILLIAM E. FULTON, . . . . .	Waterbury.
ARTHUR E. WOODRUFF, . . . . .	Mount Carmel.
ALTON FARREL, . . . . .	Ansonia.
ROBERT C. SWAYZE, . . . . .	Torrington.

## SECRETARIES OF LOCAL BRANCHES, EX-OFFICIO.

FREDERICK A. DOOLITTLE, . . . . .	Bridgeport.
WILLIAM E. PRINDLE, . . . . .	New Haven.
CHARLES A. QUINTARD, . . . . .	Norwalk.
HENRY F. PARKER, . . . . .	Norwich.
CHARLES G. STONE, . . . . .	Hartford.
MALCOLM D. RUDD, . . . . .	Lakeville.

## TRUSTEE TO NATIONAL SOCIETY.

DR. GEORGE C. F. WILLIAMS, . . . . .	Hartford.
--------------------------------------	-----------

## PURPOSES AND OBJECTS.

---

“ The purposes and objects of this Society are declared to be patriotic, historical, and educational, and shall include those intended or designed to perpetuate the memory of the men who, by their services or sacrifices during the war of the American Revolution, achieved the independence of the American people; to unite and promote fellowship among their descendants; to inspire them and the community at large with a more profound reverence for the principles of the Government founded by our forefathers; to encourage historical research in relation to the American Revolution; to acquire and preserve the records of the individual services of the patriots of the war, as well as documents, relics, and landmarks; to mark the scenes of the Revolution by appropriate memorials; to celebrate the anniversaries of the prominent events of the war and of the Revolutionary period; to foster true patriotism; to maintain and extend the institutions of American freedom, and to carry out the purposes expressed in the preamble of the Constitution of our country and the injunctions of Washington in his farewell address to the American people.”

## QUALIFICATIONS FOR MEMBERSHIP.

---

Any man shall be eligible to membership in the Society who, being of the age of twenty-one years or over, and a citizen of good repute in the community, is a lineal descendant of an ancestor who was at all times unflinching in his loyalty to, and rendered active service in, the cause of American Independence, either as an officer, soldier, seaman, marine, militiaman or minute man, in the armed forces of the Continental Congress, or of any one of the several Colonies or States, or as a signer of the Declaration of Independence, or as a member of a Committee of Safety or Correspondence, or as a member of any Continental, Provincial, or Colonial Congress or Legislature, or as a recognized patriot who performed actual service by overt acts of resistance to the authority of Great Britain,



## REASONS FOR MEMBERSHIP.

---

It is a practical way of honoring a man's patriotic forefathers.

It preserves for future generations the family pedigrees of members back to the period of the Revolution. Membership in this Society *insures* the preservation of two sets of the records filed, one by the State Registrar, and one by the Registrar General at Washington.

The Society encourages continued public interest in the men and events of the American Revolution;

To the youth of the families of members it teaches important lessons of patriotism and good citizenship;

By celebrating the important events of the Revolution, it recalls to memory the objects of that struggle and the principles for which our forefathers fought;

It leads to the marking of battlefields, routes of march and historic sites, by monuments and tablets; and to the preservation of historic buildings from destruction;

It encourages, and contributes to, the work of preserving and arranging in form accessible to the public, the priceless documents, letters and other relics of Revolutionary times;

By a wide distribution of leaflets, printed in words that all can understand, it teaches the millions of aliens in the United States what the Nation stands for, what it means for them to become a part of the body politic, participating in the duties and responsibilities of active citizens in an intelligent manner;

It is non-sectarian, non-political, uniting in friendly relationship men of all creeds, men of the North, South, East, and West.

---

“The man who feels no sentiment of veneration for the memory of his forefathers: who has no natural regard for his ancestors, or his kindred, is himself unworthy of kindred regard, or remembrance.”

—*Daniel Webster.*

HOW TO BECOME A MEMBER.

---

Trace your lineage back to the period of the Revolution through paternal and maternal lines and ascertain the names and residences of all male lineal ancestors of proper age for active participation in the struggle for Independence. This search may be guided by family papers and traditions, by published and original probate and land records of towns and counties, and by tombstone inscriptions. Search printed and manuscript records of military and naval service. Where two or more men of the same name are recorded from the same locality, identify as your own ancestor the one upon whom claim is based. Names of German, Dutch, or French origin may be disguised by translation into English or by various phonetic spellings.

Individual membership is through one of the State Societies. Every member of a State Society is *ipso facto* a member of the National Society.

Application for membership is made on standard blanks furnished by the Society. These blanks call for the place and date of birth and of death of the Revolutionary ancestor, and the year of birth, of marriage, and of death of ancestors in intervening generations. Membership is based on one original claim. When an applicant claims descent from more than one Revolutionary ancestor, additional claims are filed on supplemental papers. The application and supplementals are made in duplicate. One copy remains with the State Society, and one copy is permanently preserved in the Registrar General's office where a reference card index is kept of members' names and of their Revolutionary ancestors.

In referring to printed books the volume and page should be given.

Reference to authorities in manuscript must be accompanied by certified copies and authentic family records submitted, if required. Every application must be accompanied by \$5.00 (three dollars for membership fee and two dollars for annual dues

for first year), and must be signed and sworn to by the applicant and endorsed by a member of the Society.

Application blanks may be obtained from the Secretary or the Registrar of the State Society, and when filled out should be forwarded to the Registrar, Mr. Frederick Bostwick, 144 Grove Street, New Haven, Conn.

A Certificate of Membership, steel engraved and engrossed, 18 x 24 inches in size, is furnished to all new members upon joining the Society.

On ceremonial occasions the insignia of the Society may be worn by any member. To secure the insignia it is necessary to procure a permit from the Secretary General through the State Secretary. Upon receiving the permit from the Secretary General the insignia can be obtained from J. E. Caldwell & Co., Philadelphia. Price, silver, gold plated, \$9.00.

Lapel buttons ("rosettes") may be worn at any time when the badge is not worn. Additional buttons may be obtained from the State Secretary for 25 cents each.

SOME ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE CONNECTICUT  
SOCIETY  
of the  
SONS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION.

---

This list, except for a few additions, is taken from one printed in the National Register of the Society of the Sons of the American Revolution for 1902, which was prepared for that publication by Jonathan Trumbull.

The Connecticut Society has preserved the following historic landmarks in the State:

1. The Lebanon War Office at Lebanon, Connecticut, in which were held the meetings of the Council of Safety during the Revolution. This Council was appointed by the General Assembly of Connecticut early in the war, with power to forward troops, munitions of war and supplies, together with other powers, making the Council a substitute for the General Assembly when that body was not in session.

The building was restored and repaired by the Connecticut Society in 1891, is owned by that Society, and is now used as a public library and depository of Revolutionary relics.

For further particulars see "The Lebanon War Office," published by the Society in 1892.

2. The Nathan Hale Schoolhouse at New London. This building in which Nathan Hale taught from May, 1774, to July, 1775, at which time he joined the Army, has been purchased by the Connecticut Society, with the assistance of the Daughters of the American Revolution. It has been restored to its original condition, and removed to public ground granted for the purpose. The building was dedicated, with appropriate ceremonies, on the 17th of June, 1901. It is now occupied as the headquarters of the Lucretia Shaw Chapter, D. A. R.

---

At Compo Beach in Westport, Connecticut, there was dedicated on June 17, 1910, a monument which represents "The Minute Man," a life size statue of a Revolutionary Patriot. This memorial was erected by the Connecticut Society of the Sons of the American Revolution to commemorate the resistance to the landing on April 25, 1777, of the British troops under General Tryon for their march to Danbury.

The Society has contributed to the preservation of the Putnam Wolf Den at Pomfret, Connecticut, which has now been acquired by an organization for the purpose of preserving this landmark in commemoration of the youthful heroism of General Israel Putnam.

In 1906 the Society contributed to the fund which was being raised for "The Memorial Annex" to be added to the Groton Monument House, at Groton, Connecticut.

It has restored and preserved the memorials at Lebanon erected over the remains of Jonathan Trumbull, the Governor, and William Williams, the Signer.

It should not be forgotten in this connection that to The Connecticut Society The National Society gives the credit of inaugurating the movement which resulted in the establishment of Flag Day on June 14th.

Bronze tablets have been placed as follows:

June 29, 1894.—On the elm tree in front of the Wadsworth Atheneum in Hartford, commemorating the first visit of Washington to Connecticut. See Year Book, 1895-6, p. 47. This tablet, since the removal of the tree, has been in the rooms of the Connecticut Historical Society.

July 5, 1895.—At Beacon Hill, New Haven, commemorating the defence of New Haven at the time of Tryon's invasion, July 5, 1779. The proceedings at the ceremony, with addresses in full, are recorded in a book published by the David Humphreys Branch of the Society.

June 17, 1896.—In the Lebanon War Office, indicating the character of the building, and recording the names of some of the prominent men in the Revolution who have been within its walls. See Year Book, 1897-9, p. 51.

June 17, 1901.—In the Nathan Hale Schoolhouse at New London, commemorating the service and martyrdom of Nathan Hale, and indicating the character of the building.

June 6, 1904.—Upon the front of the Union League Club in New Haven in memory of Roger Sherman. The inscription on this tablet states that upon the site of this building stood the home of Roger Sherman, and near here in 1793 he died.

July 4, 1913.—The Col. Jeremiah Wadsworth Branch placed a bronze tablet on the Wadsworth Atheneum to mark the site of the home of Col. Jeremiah Wadsworth, Commissary General of the American Forces in the War for Independence and a trusted friend of George Washington and "Brother Jonathan Trumbull." Here in 1775 he entertained Washington on his way to assume command of the Continental Army at Cambridge. In the southwest chamber Washington met the French Commander Count Rochambeau and considered the plans which in October resulted in the fall of the British power in America.

June 27, 1914.—A bronze tablet was placed on the Hotel Taft in New Haven to mark the site of the old Beers Tavern where Washington remained over night on his way to Cambridge.

June 27, 1914.—A bronze tablet was placed at Westport marking the spot where the Farmers made a stand against the British during the famous raid on Danbury during the Revolutionary War.

---

The Society has issued, upon carefully attested applications, 2,000 bronze grave markers, designating graves of Revolutionary Soldiers and Patriots in the State. These marks were designed by a member of the Society, and adopted for the purpose of marking graves of Revolutionary Patriots throughout the State.

The Society has, in several years, awarded prizes of \$100.00 each year, for excellence in original essays on subjects connected with the American Revolution, by pupils in schools throughout the State.

The publications of the Society have been  
 Year Book for 1891, 214 pages, Octavo,  
 Year Book for 1892, 274 pages, Octavo,  
 Year Book for 1893-4, 450 pages, Octavo,  
 Year Book for 1895-6, 614 pages, Octavo,  
 Year Book for 1897, '98, '99, 701 pages, Octavo,  
 Year Book for 1900, '01, '02, '03, 854 pages, Octavo,  
 The Lebanon War Office, 1896, 96 pages.

The David Humphreys Branch of the Society has published "Songs of the Revolution," 1893, "Exercises at the Unveiling of the Beacon Hill Tablet," 1895, and "Revolutionary Characters in New Haven," 1911. The last named publication contains a large amount of historical information not heretofore published.

A pamphlet containing the addresses and describing the ceremonies connected with the unveiling of the Compo Beach Memorial was arranged and published by Henry C. Sherwood, of The Gen. Gold Selleck Silliman Branch of Bridgeport.

## CONSTITUTION.

---

### ARTICLE I.

#### NAME.

The name of this Society shall be The Connecticut Society of the Sons of the American Revolution.

### ARTICLE II.

#### NATIONAL SOCIETY.

This Society is a part of the National Society of the Sons of the American Revolution. It recognizes all State Societies of Sons of the American Revolution as coequal and entitled to receive from this Society such assistance and information as may best promote the objects for which these societies have been organized.

### ARTICLE III.

#### OBJECTS.

The objects of this Society are to perpetuate the memory and the spirit of the men who achieved American Independence; to encourage historical research in relation to the American Revolution; to preserve documents, relics, and records of the individual services of Revolutionary soldiers and patriots; to mark, by appropriate monuments, historic places within this State; to promote the celebration of patriotic anniversaries, and by these and similar means to impress upon the present and future generations the patriotic spirit which actuated our ancestors and established the Republic of the United States of America.

### ARTICLE IV.

#### MEMBERSHIP.

SECTION I. Any man not less than twenty-one years of age, who is descended from an ancestor who with unflinching loyalty



rendered material aid to the cause of American Independence in the War of the American Revolution, either as a military or naval officer, sailor, soldier, or official in the service of any of the original thirteen Colonies or States, or Vermont, or as a recognized patriot whose services are of public record, shall be eligible for membership in this Society, if found worthy.

#### HONORARY MEMBERS.

SEC. 2. Women may be admitted as honorary members, subject to the conditions as to age and descent established in the case of active members.

#### APPLICATION.

SEC. 3. All applications for membership in this Society shall be made in duplicate, upon blank forms furnished by the Society. They shall be signed with the full name and address of the applicant, and shall also be signed by at least one member of the Society nominating and recommending the applicant.

### ARTICLE V.

#### OFFICERS.

The Officers of this Society shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, a Registrar, an Historian, and a Chaplain, who shall be elected by ballot for the term of one year, and shall continue in office until their successors are elected and qualified.

### ARTICLE VI.

#### BOARD OF MANAGERS.

SECTION 1. There shall be a Board of Managers whose duty it shall be to conduct the affairs of the Society, which Board shall consist of the officers of this Society, the delegates to the National Society, the Secretaries of the several branches of this Society, *ex-officio*, and fifteen others.

SEC. 2. The Board of Managers shall have power to fill any vacancy occurring among the officers of the Society, the members of the Board, or delegates to the National Society.

## ARTICLE VII.

## MEETINGS.

SECTION 1. A meeting for the election of officers and the transaction of business shall be held annually, in the City of Hartford, on the 14th day of June (the anniversary of Connecticut's Declaration of Independence), or if said day falls on Sunday, then on the following day; and a meeting for social purposes shall be held annually at such a time and place as the Board of Managers may determine. At each annual meeting there shall be elected, in addition to the officers provided for in Article V, fifteen members of the Board of Managers, one delegate-at-large, and one delegate for each fifty or fraction of fifty exceeding twenty-five members; said delegates, together with such officers as are provided for by the Constitution of that body, shall represent this Society in all meetings of the National Society.

SEC. 2. Ten members shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of this Society.

SEC. 3. The hour for holding the annual meeting shall be 12 o'clock, noon; and the time and place for holding any special meeting shall be designated by the Board of Managers.

SEC. 4. Special meetings of the Society shall be called by the President, when directed so to do by the Board of Managers, or whenever requested in writing by fifteen or more members, on giving fifteen days' notice, specifying the time and place of such meeting and the business to be transacted.

SEC. 5. Special meetings of the Board of Managers may be called by the President at any time, and shall be called upon the request of five members of the Board, made in writing. Five members shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board.

SEC. 6. General business may be transacted at any special meeting of the Board of Managers or of the Society.

## ARTICLE VIII.

## BRANCHES.

## LOCAL ORGANIZATION.

SECTION 1. Ten members of this Society residing in any town or county of this state may send a written request to the Board of Managers, asking authority to associate as a Branch of this Society in such town or county; and the Board of Managers may grant such request.

## NAME.

SEC. 2. Local Branches shall be known as The \_\_\_\_\_ Branch of the Connecticut Society of the Sons of the American Revolution, No. \_\_\_\_\_.

## OFFICERS.

SEC. 3. Each Branch may have a President, Secretary, and Treasurer, and such other officers as the by-laws of the Branch may determine.

## MEMBERS.

SEC. 4. No person shall be admitted into a Branch, as a member, until after his admission into the State Society in the manner provided by the Constitution and Laws of this Society, and until he has paid the annual dues and fees as provided by said laws. And any member suspended or expelled, or in any way losing his membership in the State Society, shall thereupon cease to be a member of the Branch.

## BY-LAWS.

SEC. 5. Each Branch may make by-laws, rules, and regulations for its government so long as such by-laws, rules and regulations do not conflict with the Constitution and By-Laws of this Society, or with the Charter, Constitution, and By-Laws of the National Society.

## ARTICLE IX.

## AMENDMENTS.

This Constitution may be amended or repealed, provided written resolutions to that effect are first presented to, and approved by, a majority of the Board of Managers present at any meeting of said Board; provided said amendments are subsequently approved by a majority of the members present at any meeting of the Society; and provided, further, that whenever this Constitution is to be amended, repealed, or in any way changed, notice thereof, specifying said changes in full, shall be sent to each member of the Society at least ten days before such action is to be taken.

## BY-LAWS

## FEES AND DUES.

SECTION 1. Applicants elected by the Board of Managers shall become members of this Society upon payment of the membership fee and dues for one year. For active members, the membership fee shall be three dollars and the annual dues two dollars. For honorary members, the membership fee shall be fifty cents and the annual dues fifty cents. The payment of thirty dollars by an active member, or of five dollars by an honorary member at any one time shall constitute the person paying such sum a life member, and such person shall thereafter be exempt from payment of annual dues.

Annual dues shall be payable to the Treasurer by enrolled members on the 10th day of May in each year, but new members qualifying between the beginning of the calendar year and the date of the annual meeting shall not be liable for the payment of dues during the next succeeding society year.

A member who shall remain in arrears for dues for three months after notice of his indebtedness has been mailed to him, directed at his last known residence, may be dropped from the rolls by the Board of Managers, and may be reinstated in his membership by said Board upon the payment of his indebtedness to the Society.

Applications for membership shall be accompanied by the membership fee and one year's dues; which sum shall be refunded in case the application shall not be approved, or the applicant shall fail of election.

## PERMANENT FUNDS.

SEC. 2. All receipts from life membership shall be set aside and invested under the direction of the Board of Managers as a Permanent Fund, of which only the income shall be used for the payment of ordinary expenses.

## MEMORIAL FUND.

SEC. 3. There shall be a Memorial Fund to be used for the preservation of graves and monuments of Revolutionary soldiers and patriots; the marking of historic spots; and the purchase of historic places and buildings. This fund shall consist of all receipts from bequests, special subscriptions, and any regular funds of the Society, voted by the Board of Managers.

## SOCIAL MEETINGS.

SEC. 4. The Society shall hold an annual meeting for the purpose of celebrating some event in Revolutionary history, the time and place of holding such meeting to be determined by the Board of Managers; and said Board shall also determine the manner of such celebration.

## MEETING OF THE BOARD OF MANAGERS.

SEC. 5. The regular meetings of the Board of Managers shall be held on the third Tuesday of April and October in each year.

## PRESIDING OFFICER.

SEC. 6. The President, or in his absence the Vice-President, or in their absence a chairman *pro tem.*, shall preside at all meetings of the Society and of the Board of Managers, and shall have a casting vote. The presiding officer shall preserve order and shall decide all questions of order, subject to appeal to the meeting.

## DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT.

SEC. 7. The President shall be the official head of the Society. He shall perform such duties as usually pertain to that office and as are designated in these By-Laws.

## DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY.

SEC. 8. The Secretary shall conduct the general correspondence of the Society, shall notify members of their election and of such other matters as the Society may direct. He shall have charge of the seal, and of such records of the Society as are not

herein given especially in charge of other officers of the Society; and, together with the presiding officer, he shall certify all acts and orders of the Society. He shall, under direction of the President or acting President, give notice of the time and place of all meetings of the Society and of the Board of Managers, and shall give such notices of the votes, orders, and proceedings of the Society as the Society or Board of Managers may direct.

#### DUTIES OF THE TREASURER.

SEC. 9. The Treasurer shall receive and have charge of the funds of the Society; he shall deposit the same in the name of the Society, and shall pay out for the benefit of the Society only, in such sums as the Society or Board of Managers may direct, or upon the order of the Secretary, countersigned by the President. He shall keep a true account of his receipts and disbursements, and at each annual meeting shall make a full report to the Society. His accounts shall be audited by a committee to be appointed at the annual meeting. The books of the Secretary and Treasurer shall be open to the inspection of the President and Board of Managers at all times.

#### DUTIES OF THE REGISTRAR.

SEC. 10. The Registrar shall receive all applications and proofs of membership. He shall examine the same and report his opinion thereon to the Board of Managers. Imperfect and incorrect applications may be returned to the applicant by the Registrar for correction or completion. After applications have been passed upon by the Board of Managers, he shall, if the applicant is accepted, forward one copy to the Registrar General of the National Society, and shall make a record of such parts of said application as he deems necessary, in a book of forms prepared for that purpose. The original application with the accompanying proofs shall be kept on file. He shall also have the custody of all historical, geographical, and genealogical books, papers, manuscripts, and relics of which the Society may become possessed. He shall receive twenty-five cents for recording each accepted application, and shall make a report in writing at each annual meeting.

## BOARD OF MANAGERS.

SEC. 11. The Board of Managers shall judge of the qualifications of applicants for membership, and shall have control of the affairs of the Society. They shall appoint an auditing committee and a committee on necrology. They shall have the power to suspend or expel any member of the Society for sufficient cause, by vote of two-thirds of the members of the Board present at any regular or special meeting; provided that at least two weeks' notice of such proposed action shall have been given to such member by notice mailed to him at his last known address. A member so suspended or expelled shall have the right to appeal to a meeting of the Society from the action of the Board of Managers.

## DUTIES OF THE HISTORIAN.

SEC. 12. The Historian shall keep a record of all facts in connection with the Society which he may judge to be of historic value and shall make a report in writing at each annual meeting.

## DUTIES OF THE CHAPLAIN.

SEC. 13. The Chaplain shall perform such devotional and religious duties as may be called for by the Board of Managers in the course of business or exercises of the Society.

## AUDITORS.

SEC. 14. Two Auditors shall be chosen by the Society by ballot at its annual meeting. They shall audit the Treasurer's accounts for the year following the date of their election, and shall report to the Society at its annual meeting after their election.

## AMENDMENTS.

SEC. 15. These By-Laws shall not be altered, amended, or repealed unless such alteration or amendment shall have been proposed in writing at a previous meeting of the Board of Managers and entered upon the records, with the name of the member proposing the change, and also adopted by a majority of the members present at a regular meeting of the Society, or at a special meeting called for that purpose.



## MEMBERSHIP ROLL

## ACTIVE MEMBERS

No.	Name	Address
2196	Adams, Arthur	Hartford
2101	Adams, Clement E.	Bridgeport
1676	Adams, L. Wayne	Hartford
2034	Adams, Thomas D.	Westport
536	Aiken, Gen. William A.	Norwich
537	Alden, J. Everett	Torrington
1924	Allen, Francis B.	Hartford
2168	Allen, Normand F.	Hartford
415	Allen, William H.	Norwich
1514	Alling, David R.	New Haven
1456	Alling, Edward B.	New Britain
1520	Alling, George A.	New Haven
2351	Alling, Harry G.	Hartford
1446	Alling, Noyes E.	Bridgeport
1535	Allis, Terrence S.	Derby
2279	Allyn, Robert J.	Hartford
1681	Alvord, Charles H.	Torrington
2092	Alvord, George B.	Hartford
1898	Alvord, Dr. Joseph D.	Bridgeport
1899	Andrews, Albert W.	Bridgeport
2061	Andrews, Floyd W.	New Haven
1074	Andrews, Frederick W.	New Haven
2138	Andrews, William S.	Hartford
2162	Anketell, Edward N.	New Haven
2170	Appleton, Frederick L.	West Hartford
1033	Arms, F. Thornton	Portsmouth, N. H., Navy Yard
1836	Armstrong, Frank L.	Bridgeport
2280	Armstrong, Ricardo F.	New Haven
2169	Atwater, Bryan H.	Berlin
1494	Atwater, Edward I. (Life)	New Haven
1638	Atwater, Edwin B.	New Haven
2337	Atwater, Harry H.	New Haven
806	Averill, John C.	Norwich
1949	Averill, Capt. N. K. (Life)	St. Petersburg, Russia, Military At- tache, U. S. Embassy, (mail, Woodbury)
1462	Avery, Edward P.	New Haven

No.	Name	Address
938	Avery, Frank M.	Brooklyn, N. Y., 108 Lincoln Pl.
1428	Avery, Irving J.	Hartford
1268	Balcock Samuel	Middletown
2245	Bacon, John B. F.	New Haven
1261	Bailey, Henry L.	Groton
1314	Baker, Ellis B.	Aberdeen, So. Dak.
1034	Baker, Isaiah, Jr.	Hartford
1925	Baker, Lieut. Lester D.	Fort Miley, California
1193	Baldwin, George M.	Bridgeport
2079	Baldwin, Hon. Simeon E.	New Haven
639	Barber, William P.	Hartford
2182	Barbour, Lucius A.	Hartford
2086	Barbour, Lucius B.	Hartford
1229	Barbour, Samuel L.	Hartford
1348	Barker, George W.	Bridgeport
1583	Barlow, Charles C.	New Haven
1075	Barlow, Thomas D.	Waterbury
1433	Barnes, Amos F.	New Haven
2163	Barnes, Cassius B., Lieut.	New Haven
2222	Barnes, George L.	Ansonia
2223	Barnes, William A.	Ansonia
1076	Barnes, William A.	Bridgeport
1417	Barrows, Freeman W.	Hartford
1661	Bartlett, Warren T.	Hartford
2201	Barton, Charles H.	New Britain
1886	Bassett, George J.	New Haven
2202	Bassett, James W.	Mt. Carmel
62	Bates, Albert C.	Hartford
2171	Batchelder, Joseph W.	Rocky Hill
2307	Baxter, John W.	New York City, 159 W 13th Street
2308	Baxter, William G.	Hartford
2250	Beach, Charles M.	New Milford
249	Beach, George W.	Saybrook
284	Beach, Henry L.	Hartford
774	Beardsley, Edward W.	Hartford
2251	Beardsley, Frederick S.	Stratford
2004	Beardsley, John L.	Bridgeport
1078	Beardsley, Morris B. (Life)	Bridgeport
1036	Beardsley, Samuel F.	Bridgeport
2139	Beckwith, Edwin M.	Meriden
1527	Beckwith, Oliver R.	Hartford
1858	Beebe, Dr. Dow R.	Bridgeport
440	Beecher, L. Wheeler (Life)	New Haven

No.	Name	Address
2016	Beers, Arthur C. T.	New Haven
777	Belden, Herbert E.	Hartford
1900	Belden, Isaac L.	Stratford
1926	Belden, John H.	Hartford
261	Belden, Joshua	Newington
2157	Belknap, Charles H.	Bloomfield
2309	Belknap, Edward L.	Hartford
142	Belknap, Leverett (Life)	Hartford
2338	Berg, Rev. Irving H.	Fort Washington Collegiate Re- form Church, 181st Street and Fort Washington Ave., New York City
2063	Berry, Fred Daniel	Hartford
2064	Berry, Samuel H.	Hartford
1384	Betts, Henry B.	Danbury
2284	Bibbins, David N., Jr.	Bridgeport
2276	Bill, William Coe	Hartford
1151	Billard, John L.	Meriden
576	Bingham, Edwin H.	Hartford
1135	Bingham, Brig.-Gen. Theo. A.	New York, N. Y., St. Nicholas Club, 7 W 44th St.
1787	Bird, Clinton H.	New Haven
1199	Birdsey, Eli C.	Meriden
2065	Birdseye, Arthur Julius	Farmington
941	Birdseye, Isaac W. (Life)	Bridgeport
892	Bishop, Henry A. (Life)	Bridgeport
1370	Bissell, Clinton T.	So. Manchester
1578	Bissell, F. Clarence	Hartford
620	Bissell, Hiram J.	Lakeville
2164	Blake, Eugene M., Dr.	New Haven
1783	Blake, Frederick E.	Bridgeport
1860	Blakeman, Frank E.	Oronoque
1861	Blakeman, James H.	Oronoque
2204	Blakeslee, Clarence	New Haven
2205	Blakeslee, Dennis A.	New Haven
1434	Blakeslee, Fred G.	Hartford
1901	Blakeslee, Robert N.	Bridgeport
2206	Blakeslee, Theodore R.	New Haven
2109	Bliss, Charles G.	New York City, 50 Church St., Room 1650
646	Bliss, Frederick S.	Hartford
2352	Blodgett, Harry L.	Hartford
2035	Bloomer, Howard J.	New York City, 32 Broadway
376	Boardman, Thomas J.	Hartford
1895	Bostwick, Frederick	New Haven

No.	Name	Address
2253	Bostwick, Frederick B.	New Haven
1174	Bostwick, Leonard	New Haven
1447	Bosworth, Fred E.	Hartford
374	Bowers, Edward A.	New Haven
467	Boyd, Edward E.	Hartford
1956	Boyd, Edward S.	Woodbury
1714	Boyd, George E.	Waterbury
944	Bradley, Clarence P.	Meriden
1371	Bradley, Frederick T.	New Haven
1136	Bradley, George T.	New Haven
2036	Bradley, John S.	New Haven
2234	Bradley, Robert F.	New York City, 1790 Broadway, c/o United States Rubber Export Co., Ltd.
2197	Bragaw, Isaac	Hartford
679	Brainerd, Judson B.	Portland
1927	Brewster, Robert M.	Hartford
2141	Bridgeman, Myron H.	Hartford
2281	Brinsmade, James B.	Derby
1579	Brinsmade, John C.	Washington
1824	Bristol, Benjamin H.	Waterbury
1823	Bristol, Bennet B.	Foxboro, Mass.
1825	Bristol, Edgar H. (Life)	Foxboro, Mass.
1957	Britton, Charles O.	Hartford
1950	Britton, Ralph D.	Hartford
1962	Brockway, William S.	West Hartford
1713	Bronson, Elliott B.	Winsted
1784	Bronson, Robert A.	New Haven
998	Brooker, Charles F. (Life)	Ansonia
1537	Brooks, Ansel J.	West Haven
2017	Brooks, Harvey J.	Deep River
1538	Brooks, James W.	Derby
1529	Brooks, John N.	Torrington
1814	Brothwell, Orlando H.	Bridgeport
2207	Brown, Frederick W.	New Haven
2208	Brown, Rev. George M.	Bridgeport
1418	Brown, Harry H. (Life)	New Haven
1424	Brusstar, Benjamin F.	Detroit, Mich., 287 West Grand Boulevard
539	Bryant, Edward B.	Hartford
1250	Bryant, George C.	Ansonia
94	Bryant, Thomas W.	Torrington
2262	Bryan, Oliver	Atlantic City, N. J., 12 So. Stenton Place

No.	Name	Address
2066	Buck, Henry Robinson	Hartford
893	Buckingham, Charles B.	Bridgeport
1771	Buckingham, Nathan C.	Bridgeport
2235	Buckingham, William W.	West Haven
1728	Budd, Henry A.	New York, N. Y., 12 E. 64th St.
593	Bulkeley, Benjamin A.	Southport
682	Bulkeley, E. Brainerd	New York, N. Y., Guaranty Trust Co. of N. Y., 28 Nassau St.
681	Bulkeley, Hon. Morgan G.	Hartford
1684	Bull, Cornelius S.	Waterbury
1039	Bull, Dr. Thomas M.	Naugatuck
2037	Bullock, Rev. Chas. S.	New London
177	Burbank, Brig.-Gen. James B.	New York, N. Y., Manhattan Club
2321	Burdick, Howard H.	Hartford
1082	Burgess, George F. (Life)	New Haven
2152	Burnham, Fred C.	Hartford
1800	Burns, Wilbur F.	Bridgeport
1976	Burpee, Lucien F.	Hartford
1528	Burr, William H.	Westport
1487	Burroughs, Frederick C.	New Haven
1639	Burroughs, Henry C.	Bridgeport
2225	Burton, Charles D.	New Haven
1608	Burton, Charles E.	New Haven
2183	Burton, Franklin B.	Stratford
552	Burton, Franklin	Ansonia
1488	Burton, George R.	New Haven
1879	Burton, Louis R.	New Haven
553	Burton, Silas	Bridgeport
895	Bushnell, Frank C.	New Haven
1539	Bashnell, Philo A.	New Haven
2067	Butler, Dr. William N.	Hartford
419	Butts, Charles R.	Norwich
420	Butts, George C.	Norwich
469	Calef, Dr. J. Francis	Middletown
1201	Calhoun, John	Torrington
1372	Calkins, Frederic	Philadelphia, Pa., 1014 So. 49th St.
948	Camp, Franklin A.	Meriden
1640	Camp, Harry C.	Southington
949	Camp, Herbert L.	Middletown
1318	Camp, John Spencer	Hartford
2254	Campbell, James N. H.	Hartford
350	Carroll, George W.	Norwich
1696	Carter, Louis S.	So. Manchester

No.	Name	Address
1609	Case, Benjamin F.	Canton Center
2172	Case, Clayton H.	Hartford
2173	Case, Willis B.	Hartford
1942	Castle, Ernest B.	Sea Cliff, N. Y.
169	Catlin, Abijah, Jr.	Hartford
736	Catlin, William H.	Meriden
1479	Chamberlin, Albert S.	Hartford
2285	Chamberlin, Cyrus C.	Plantsville
1480	Chamberlin, Frank D.	Hartford
1603	Chamberlin, Smith T.	Derby
2310	Chamberlin, William F.	Hartford
2068	Chambers, Frederick M.	New Haven
2335	Chambers, Stanley H.	New Haven
1181	Champion, John N.	New Haven
897	Chandler, Charles E.	Norwich
1645	Chandler, Randolph H.	Thompson
90	Chapin, Charles E.	Greenwich
1604	Chapin, Gilbert W.	Hartford
1982	Chapin, Terry J.	Hartford
1084	Chapman, Charles S.	Waterbury
299	Chapman, Dwight	Hartford
1880	Chapman, Robert W.	West Haven
135	Chappell, Frank H.	New London
1986	Chappell, Frank H., Jr.	New London
293	Chappell, William S.	New London
778	Charlton, John H.	Montreal, Canada
1085	Chase, Henry S. (Life)	Waterbury
1086	Chase, Irving H.	Waterbury
2339	Chase, Warren D.	Hartford
1881	Chatfield, Minotte E.	New Haven
1041	Cheney, Col. Louis R. (Life)	Hartford
1928	Chesson, Frederick W.	Waterbury
2111	Chidsey, Samuel R.	New Haven
1377	Choate, Charles N.	Bridgeport
2112	Church, Walter N.	New Haven
2038	Churchill, George E.	New Britain R. F. D. No. 2
1740	Clapp, George I.	Hartford
1929	Clapp, Roswell J.	Hartford
1792	Clark, Arthur L.	Winsted
229	Clark, Charles Hopkins	Hartford
1697	Clark, Charles M.	Waterbury
1698	Clark, F. Alton	Naugatuck
1301	Clark, George C.	Terryville
2322	Clark, Harold W.	Bridgeport

No.	Name	Address
1567	Clark, Noyes D.	Woodbridge
1996	Coburn, Dr. J. Milton	So. Norwalk
1580	Coburn, John S.	New Haven
1429	Coe, Benjamin Lee	Waterbury
513	Coe, Charles P.	Bridgeport
1042	Coe, Edward S.	Cromwell
1147	Cogswell, Leonard W.	New Haven
900	Cogswell, Richard B.	Bridgeport
952	Coit, Alfred	New London
1685	Cole, George E.	Torrington
472	Collins, Atwood	Hartford
2070	Colt, Luman Catlin	Winsted
63	Conant, George A.	Hartford
1092	Cone, Henry F.	Hartford
473	Cone, James B.	Hartford
816	Cone, Robert B.	Hartford
745	Congdon, Lieut. Carey	New London
624	Conklin, Harry S.	Hartford
625	Conklin, William P.	Hartford
1829	Cooke, L. Morelle	Wallingford
817	Cooley, Charles P. (Life)	Hartford
180	Cooley, Francis R.	Hartford
1987	Copley, Frederick L.	Los Angeles, Cal., 1028 Grand View St.
1234	Copley, George D.	New Britain
1235	Corbin, Albert F.	New Britain
421	Corbin, Frank A.	New Haven
1089	Corbin, Frank E.	New Britain
1963	Corbin, William H.	Hartford
1610	Cornish, Louis H.	Stamford
747	Couch, George W.	Meriden
2039	Courtright, Theodore	Bridgeport
780	Covey, William E.	Minneapolis, Minn., 2216 Bryant Ave.
1786	Cowles, Bliss S.	Hartford
2270	Cowles, Col. Calvin D.	Hartford
278	Cowles, Edwin S.	Hartford
277	Cowles, Frank	Hartford
1605	Cowles, Sidney M.	Kensington
2113	Cowles, Willard A.	Torrington
1585	Crawford, George E.	Bridgeport
2255	Crawford, Arthur J.	New Haven
2203	Crocker, Benjamin B.	Hartford
2040	Crook, George H.	Derby
1780	Cross, Morelle F.	New Haven

No.	Name	Address
1517	Crowell, Edward H.	Hartford
1930	Crummett, Carl S.	Philadelphia, Pa., 6049 Washington Ave.
1699	Culver, Amos	Naugatuck
1419	Curtis, Lewis B. (Life)	Bridgeport
1904	Curtiss, Dr. Rollin A.	Stratford
1175	Daboll, Loren E.	New London
740	Danforth, Joseph W.	New York, N. Y., 17 Battery Pl.
956	Danforth, Rev. J. Romeyn	New London
1044	Daniels, Frederick J.	Putnam
1752	Davis, Charles D.	Bridgeport
649	Davis, Charles E.	New York City, Box 133, 32 W 40th Street
1785	Davis, Gustavus F.	Windsor
1862	Davis, Richard G.	New Haven
650	Davis, Solon P.	Hartford
1161	Davison, Edward H.	New Britain
2353	Dawless, Frank S.	New Canaan
2256	DeLacour, Harold F.	Stratford
2257	DeLacour, Reginald B.	Stratford
1177	DeLamater, Richard W.	Wethersfield
2277	Demarest, John R.	New Haven
555	Deming, Edward H.	Farmington
2	Deming, Lucius P.	New York City, 247 East 200 St., Bronx
689	Denison, Frederic	Mystic
1045	Denison, Lee S.	New London
2174	Dexter, Edward M.	Hartford
820	Dewell, James D., Jr.	New Haven
1716	Dickinson, Arthur M.	Waterbury
2115	Dimick, Chester E.	New London
748	Doolittle, Edgar J. (Life)	Meriden
1742	Doolittle, Eugene L.	Detroit, Mich., 21 Davenport
1732	Doolittle, Frederick A.	Bridgeport
2258	Doolittle, William H.	Chicago, Ill., 1021 Peoples Gas Bldg.
1587	Doty, Samuel C.	Hartford
2356	Dresser, Wilfred H.	Hartford
1090	Driggs, George A.	Waterbury
1448	Dudley, Frederick A.	New Haven
1943	Dunbar, Marcene B.	Winsted
2184	Downs, William P.	Bridgeport
2311	Dunham, Donald A.	Hartford
1540	Dyer, Daniel T.	Collinsville



No.	Name	Address
990	Eames, Carlos S.	Bridgeport
822	Earle, Arthur W.	New Haven
2185	Earl, Frederic C.	New Haven
749	Eddy, Arthur H.	Windsor
2165	Edgar, Clark D.	New London
928	Edgerton, Frank C.	Meriden
2286	Edwards, Gilbert Y.	Stratford
804	Edwards, Henry C.	Warehouse Point
1091	Eggleston, Percy C.	New London
2340	Ellsworth, Ernest B.	Hartford
1046	Eliot, William R.	Boston, Mass., 331 Huntington Ave.
2323	Elmore, Henry D.	Hartford
8	Elmore, Samuel E.	Hartford
826	Elton, James S. (Life)	Waterbury
827	Elton, John P.	Waterbury
2007	Ely, William B.	New Haven
1596	Emmons, Edwin J.	New Milford
1977	English, Benjamin F.	New Haven
1978	Fairchild, George B.	Bethel
1830	Farlee, George R.	New Haven
1436	Farnsworth, Frederick B.	New Haven
1435	Farnsworth, William E.	Hartford
2103	Farrel, Alton	Ansonia
2226	Farrel, Franklin, Jr.	New Haven
444	Farren, Rev. Merritt A.	West Somerville, Mass., 32 Lexington Ave.
1932	Faxon, Walter C.	Hartford
1358	Febiger, Col. Lea (Life)	San Francisco, Cal., Presidio Station, 6th Infantry, U. S. A.
692	Fitch, Dr. Chas. Wellington	New York, N. Y., 32 E. 64th St.
1205	Fitts, George H. (Life)	Willimantic
108	Fitts, Henry E.	Hartford
1451	Fletcher, Henry F.	Hazardville
2348	Follett, Lorin	Bridgeport
412	Foote, David T.	Minneapolis, Minn., 2528 University Ave.
422	Foote, Ellsworth I.	New Haven
2218	Foote, George C.	New Haven
517	Ford, Gen. George H.	New Haven
2287	Forward, John F.	Hartford
2271	Foskett, William A.	New Haven
2041	Foster, Carl	Bridgeport
2324	Foster, Charles N.	Meriden

No.	Name	Address
2042	Foster, Pierrepont B.	New Haven
2175	Foster, Sylvester M.	Westport
1569	Fox, Dr. Edward G.	Wethersfield
1321	Fox, Edward L.	New Haven
2341	Francis, Edward M.	Hartford
1933	Freeman, Edmund E.	East Hartford
2093	French, Arthur R.	Bridgeport
2094	French, Horatio J.	Bridgeport
2043	French, Raymond T.	Seymour
2095	French, Walter E.	Bridgeport
1094	Frisbie, Edward L., Jr.	Waterbury
1840	Frost, Lewis E.	Meriden
382	Frost, Gen. Russell	So. Norwalk
2272	Fuessenich, Frederick W.	Torrington
2198	Fuller, Chamcey C.	Hartford
1404	Fuller, Edward E. (Life)	Tolland
2246	Fulton, Irving K. (Life)	Salisbury
1096	Fulton, William E. (Life)	Waterbury
2247	Fulton, William E. (Life)	Waterbury
2044	Furst, Walter B.	New Haven
651	Fyler, Anson P.	Hartford
1958	Gale, Philip B.	Hartford
1809	Gallond, J. Merrick	Waterbury
1612	Gallup, Charles D.	Norwich
1613	Gallup, Henry H.	Norwich
1542	Garde, Andrew E.	Cromwell
2045	Gardner, Albert C.	New Haven
834	Gardner, Robert S.	Derby
2156	Garrette, John F.	Hartford
2273	Gay, Donald	Newport News, Va.
25	Gay, Frank B. (Life)	Hartford
1662	Gaylord, Andrew S.	Terryville
2104	Gaylord, Edward B.	Glastonbury
2312	Gaylord, Henry C.	Falls Village
1207	Geer, Albert L.	So. Manchester
1138	Geer, William H.	Lebanon
960	George, J. Herbert	Norwich
487	Gilbert, Charles E.	Hartford
1733	Gilbert, Charles P.	Bridgeport
836	Gildersleeve, Alfred	Gildersleeve
1934	Gildersleeve, Ferdinand	Gildersleeve
253	Gillett, Albert B.	Hartford
1951	Gillette, Edward	Sheridan, Wyoming

No.	Name	Address
1302	Gladden, William H.	New Britain
447	Gladding, Charles F.	Hartford
476	Glazier, Charles M.	Hartford
1001	Glazier, Daniel J.	Hartford
518	Glazier, Franklin D.	So. Glastonbury
1452	Godard, George S.	Hartford
1597	Godfrey, Dr. Charles C.	Bridgeport
282	Goodrich, Elizur S.	Hartford
2080	Goodrich, James R.	Hartford
1464	Goodrich, Theodore H.	Hartford
2116	Goodrich, William B.	New Haven
523	Goodsell, Zalmon	Bridgeport
1614	Goodwin, Charles L.	Hartford
61	Goodwin, D. D., Rev. Francis	Hartford
1615	Goodwin, George R.	Hartford
2158	Goodwin, Henry H.	Hartford
640	Goodwin, Dr. Nelson J.	Hartford
2117	Goodwin, Dr. Nelson J., Jr.	Hartford
673	Goodyear, Dr. Robert B.	North Haven
1864	Gorham, J. Fred	Bridgeport
1717	Gorton, Dr. Henry H.	Naugatuck
1405	Gorton, Joseph C.	Hartford
1406	Gorton, Philip G.	Hartford
1322	Gough, Charles H.	West Haven
163	Grant, Roswell	New Haven
2105	Gray, Henry W., Jr.	Hartford
448	Greeley, Gen. Edwin S. (Life)	New Haven
697	Greeley, Franklin M.	Bridgeport
1865	Greene, Henry R.	Bridgeport
796	Griffing, Martin H.	Danbury
1238	Griggs, David C.	Waterbury
1686	Griggs, Robert F.	Waterbury
1303	Griswold, Charles	Guilford
1616	Griswold, George G.	Berlin
2325	Griswold, Dr. Gilbert M.	Hartford
1387	Griswold, Howard R.	Hartford
2118	Griswold, Dr. Matthew H.	Berlin
2119	Griswold, Peter Bierce	Rocky Hill
79	Griswold, Dr. Roger M.	Kensington
840	Griswold, Robert S.	Cromwell
2046	Griswold, Robert S.	Hartford
105	Gross, Charles E.	Hartford
1004	Guild, Dr. Frank E.	Windham

No.	Name	Address
698	Gulliver, Frederic P.	Norwichtown
1098	Gulliver, Henry S.	Waterbury
1997	Hadley, George T.	Bridgeport
2199	Haggerty, Harry C.	New Haven
2120	Hale, Dr. Frarary, Jr.	Bridgeport
841	Hale, William F.	Newtown
905	Hall, Arthur E.	Boston, Mass., 88 Broad St.
906	Hall, Eugene A.	Meriden
1826	Hall, Frederick W.	Bridgeport
628	Hall, James P.	Hartford
1304	Hall, John L.	Boston, Mass., 30 State St.
1812	Hall, O. Howard	Bridgeport
581	Hall, Russell L.	New Canaan
1866	Halligen, William E.	Bridgeport
783	Hallock, Edwin	Derby
1642	Hamilton, Frank L.	Meriden
1100	Hamilton, Paul D.	Waterbury
2288	Hanna, Roy W.	New Haven
2088	Hannum, Theo. W.	Wethersfield
1718	Hard, William G.	Naugatuck
797	Harmon, John M.	Meriden
908	Harrington, Charles R.	Liberty, N. Y.
2342	Harris, Henry E.	Bridgeport
1344	Harris, Walter S. G.	Hartford
2264	Harrison, Henry L.	New Haven
2291	Harrison, James R.	Salisbury
2292	Harrison, Jared F.	Salisbury
1830	Hart, William H.	Bridgeport
1465	Harwood, P. LeRoy	New London
1617	Hatch, William L.	New Britain
1543	Havens, F. Stuart	Philadelphia, Pa., 1225 So. 57th St.
843	Hawley, Charles W.	Bridgeport
1743	Hawley, Edwin S.	Torrington
2176	Hawley, Henry B.	Brookfield
1841	Hawley, Sidney E.	Bridgeport
2326	Hayes, Frederick J.	Bridgeport
1407	Hayes, Nathaniel J.	New Haven
2327	Hayes, Wesley F.	Bridgeport
752	Heath, Edwin L.	Brookline, Mass., 1788 Beacon St.
2265	Healey, Raymond R.	New Britain
226	Heaton, J. Edward (Life)	New Haven
1396	Helme, John W.	South Windsor
2071	Hemingway, Arthur F.	New Haven
1501	Heminway, Harry H.	Watertown

No.	Name	Address
699	Heminway, Merritt (Life)	Watertown
57	Hendee, Edward D.	New Haven
319	Henry, E. Stevens	Rockville
1570	Hewitt, Harrison	New Haven
1323	Higgins, Edwin W.	Norwich
1546	Hill, Ebenezer, Jr.	Norwalk
1618	Hill, John R.	Danbury
845	Hillhouse, James W.	Willimantic
398	Hills, William E.	New York, N. Y., 277 Broadway
2177	Hine, Harold M.	Hartford
2266	Hinsdale, James H.	Meriden
2018	Hinkley, Arthur Guy	Hartford
1324	Hitchcock, Arthur C.	Bristol
1867	Hoadley, Carleton E.	New Haven
629	Hoadley, Francis A.	Hartford
2089	Hodge, George Hendrick	New Haven
2096	Hoffer, Frederic S.	Hartford
1789	Holbrook, Dwight G.	Hartford
1868	Holbrook, James H.	Winsted
160	Holcombe, John M.	Hartford
1907	Holden, Frederick W.	Ansonia
1103	Holmes, Charles L.	Waterbury
1965	Holmes, Edward R. (Life)	Winsted
1966	Holmes, Ralph W. (Life)	Winsted
1893	Holmes, Stanley H.	New Britain
1104	Holmes, Walter W.	Waterbury
1655	Holt, John H.	Fall River, Mass., 594 Maple St.
1967	Homan, William C.	Meriden
186	Hooker, Dr. Edward B.	Hartford
784	Hooker, Thomas W.	Hartford
2236	Hopkins, Edward C.	Edgewood, R. I., 177 Columbia Ave.
1571	Hopson, William F.	New Haven
2219	Horton, Howard E.	New Britain
1687	Hotchkiss, Edward E.	Naugatuck
75	Hotchkiss, Hobart L. (Life)	New Haven
2072	Hotchkiss, Wm. Merritt	New Haven
1305	House, Charles E. (Life)	So. Manchester
317	Houston, Lt. Col. James B.	Chicago, Ill., 563 Federal Bldg.
1437	Howard, Daniel	Windsor
700	Howe, Rev. Samuel H.	Norwich
2328	Howland, Dr. DeRuyter	Stratford
1793	Hubbard, E. Kent, Jr., (Life)	Middletown
1005	Hubbell, Harvey	Bridgeport
1619	Hubbell, Joseph B.	Bridgeport

No.	Name	Address
669	Hulbert, Thomas H. (Life)	Chicago, Ill., Willoughby Bldg.
1968	Hull, Frederick C.	New Haven
594	Hull, John A.	New Haven
1438	Hull, Richard L.	Clinton
2313	Humphrey, Edward F.	Hartford
1620	Humphrey, H. Dayton	New Britain
2106	Humphrey, Howard S.	New Britain
1734	Hungerford, Chas. S.	Watertown
704	Hungerford, Newman (Life)	Hartford
1888	Hunter, Rolland L.	Bridgeport
1842	Huntington, Andrew B.	Southport
1621	Huntington, Frederick L.	Meriden
68	Huntington, Rev. John T.	Hartford
157	Huntington, Robert W., Jr.	Hartford
228	Huntington, William H.	Newport, R. I., 9 Bay View Ave.
2121	Huntoon, Charles H.	Sayville, N. Y.
1935	Hurlburt, Frank H.	Hartford
2210	Husted, Mills H.	Greenwich
1598	Huth, Charles S.	Bridgeport
505	Ingalls, Dr. Phineas H.	Hartford
1622	Ives, Fred D.	Bridgeport
1719	Ives, Frederick A.	Cheshire
910	Ives, Leland H.	Meriden
1870	Jackman, John M.	Bridgeport
1688	Jackson, Dr. Charles W.	Watertown
2314	Jillson, Willard R.	New Haven
2293	Jennings, Dr. Floyd L.	Lakeville
1936	Jewett, Frederick L.	Detroit, Mich., 229 Seyburn Ave.
1473	Johnson, Andrew L.	Winchester Center
1296	Johnson, Edwin C., 2nd	Norwich
2186	Johnson, Eugene A.	Bridgeport
1757	Johnson, William E.	West Hartford
316	Jones, Clarence E.	New Hartford
1573	Jones, Dr. Daniel A.	New Haven
2122	Jones, Frederic B.	New Hartford
2019	Jones, Raymond B.	Bridgeport
1240	Jones, W. Frank	Hartford
1843	Jones, William W.	Bridgeport
849	Judd, George E.	Waterbury
2123	Judd, Seymour M.	New Haven
1664	Judd, William H.	New Britain
1871	Judson, Charles F.	Stratford

No.	Name	Address
2010	Keeney, Dr. Burtus H.	Waterford
2259	Keeney, Dr. J. Milton	New York City, 150 W. 126th St.
1700	Keeney, Nelson M.	New London
850	Keep, Howard H.	Hartford
2047	Kelley, Solon C.	Stamford
1110	Kellogg, Charles P.	Waterbury
49	Kellogg, John P.	Waterbury
1720	Kellogg, Isaac P.	Waterbury
1725	Kelly, Henry G.	Toronto, Can., c/o R. G. Dunn & Co.
2098	Kelsey, William B.	Stratford
1531	Kendall, Nathaniel W.	New Haven
2178	Kennedy, Harry B.	New Haven
1701	Kennedy, John B.	New Haven
2267	Kilmer, George L.	Brooklyn, N. Y., 1228 82nd St.
1908	King, George S.	Hartford
1270	King, Harvey B.	Hartford
2343	Kirk, Bennett B.	Stamford
2344	Kirk, Frank H.	Stamford
1581	Klock, Rev. Edwin J.	Trumble
1744	Knapp, Charles J.	Bridgeport
1518	Knapp, Herbert M.	Bridgeport
155	Knight, Dr. William W.	Hartford
1359	Kuhus, Oscar	Middletown
2124	Lake, Simon	Milford
2142	Lane, Arthur S.	Meriden
851	Landers, George M.	New Britain
2294	Landon, Albert B.	Lakeville
2211	Landon, John S.	New Haven
1656	Landon, William P.	Hartford
315	Lathrop, Henry C.	Windham
2048	Law, Richard W.	New Haven
1253	Lay, Julius G., Consul-General	Rio de Janeiro, Brazil
1646	Leach, James C. E.	Norwich
1624	Leach, Robert H.	Waterbury
631	Learned, Horace C.	New London
2049	Lee, George H.	Bridgeport
1745	Lee, Henry K.	Hartford
585	Lee, Wilson H.	New Haven
2212	Leete, Arthur R.	Thompsonville
755	Levi, Henry B.	Meriden
1263	Lewis, Albert N.	Norfolk, Va., R. F. D. No. 6
2213	Lewis, Elijah B.	New Haven
1414	Lewis, Robert H.	Hartford

No.	Name	Address
2125	Lincoln, Allen B.	New Haven
262	Lincoln, Frederick M.	Hartford
2011	Lincoln, Richard C.	Hartford
757	Lindsley, Charles F.	Meriden
332	Lines, H. Wales (Life)	Meriden
2050	Lisbona, Dr. Milton R.	Bridgeport
758	Lockwood, Edgar	West Haven
1703	Lockwood, Edson B.	Watertown
1831	Lockwood, Manice D. (Life)	Norwalk
1846	Lockwood, Manice D., Jr. (Life)	Norwalk
2289	Longley, Charles S.	New Haven
1909	Loomis, George A.	Hartford
2315	Loomis, James L.	Granby
1328	Loomis, Seymour C.	New Haven
2051	Loomis, William F.	Hartford
346	Lord, Everett E.	New Haven
13	Love, Rev. William DeLoss	Hartford
2329	Lovell, Aldis W.	Waterbury
2330	Lovell, Robert W.	Waterbury
1910	Ludington, Joseph S.	Patterson, N. Y.
427	Lummis, Frank C.	Chaplin
1399	Lyman, David	Woonsocket, R. I., 62 Social St.
969	Lyman, Henry A. (Life)	Bowensmouth, England, The Alexandra Bath Road
1735	Lyman, Richard P.	East Lansing, Mich., Box 976
2090	Lyon, Edwin Palmer	New Haven
912	Lyon, Ernest P.	Bridgeport
1881	Lyon, Henry W.	Bridgeport
1844	Lyon, William H.	Meriden
2179	Mabee, David W.	New Haven
2020	Mabee, George W.	New Haven
2227	Macfarlane, William T.	Bridgeport
854	MacNaught, George K., Rev.	Harrison, N. Y.
2160	Macomber, Frank G.	Hartford
2127	Maereklin, Burdette C.	Hartford
1911	Magill, Claude A.	New Haven
1329	Maltby, Julius	Waterbury
1794	Mann, B. Hartley	Hamden
2021	Manross, Robert E.	New Haven
2161	Manville, Tracy F.	Waterbury
2145	Markham, Daniel A.	Hartford
2214	Marks, Rev. Charles A.	Wilton
1873	Marsh, Buckingham	Bridgeport



No.	Name	Address
2126	Marsh, Walter E.	Bridgeport
1507	Martin, George B.	New Haven
1983	Marvin, L. P. Waldo	Hartford
2228	Massoletti, Joseph D.	Sound Beach
1758	Mather, Frank M.	Hartford
527	Mathewson, A. McClellan	New Haven
600	Mathewson, Dr. Arthur	Woodstock
182	Maxwell, Francis T.	Rockville
173	Maxwell, Robert	New York, N. Y., 334 Fourth Ave.
185	Maxwell, William	Rockville
363	May, Dr. Calvin S.	New York, N. Y., 205 W. 57th St.
2107	McIlwaine, Archibald G., Jr.	Hartford
1912	McKinney, Frederic E.	Hartford
1666	McNeil, Archibald	Bridgeport
1736	McNeil, Charles F.	New Haven
708	McNeil, Charles L.	Torrington
2128	Mead, Nelson B.	Greenwich
326	Meech, Stephen B.	Norwich
2022	Meeks, Dr. Harold A.	Meriden
1689	Meigs, Charles E.	Waterbury
1667	Merriam, Edmund A.	Torrington
1847	Merriman, Buckingham P.	Waterbury
2180	Merwin, Charles F.	New Haven
2181	Merwin, George W.	New Haven
1561	Metcalf, Dr. William H.	New Haven
2153	Mildrum, Ernest W.	Berlin
2295	Miles, Richard K.	Lakeville
2053	Miller, Max Elwyn	New Haven
2073	Miller, Paul L.	Bridgeport
1213	Mills, Dwight P.	Naugatuck
2331	Mills, H. Wyckoff	Hartford
1159	Mills, Lyman A.	Middlefield
1297	Mills, William S.	Bridgeport
1704	Mitchell, Charles F.	Waterbury
1057	Mix, Eli	New Haven
1214	Mix, Elisha	Stamford
1677	Mix, William K.	Bridgeport
1283	Mix, Willis L.	New Haven
1746	Moore, Burton E.	Winsted
1298	Moore, George W.	South Windsor
2248	Morehouse, John H.	New Milford
1705	Morgan, Christopher	Mystic
1832	Morgan, Edward J.	Bridgeport
2188	Morgan, James H.	Hartford

No.	Name	Address
215	Morgan, Dr. William D.	Hartford
103	Morgan, William E.	New Haven
1817	Morris, Charles G.	New Haven
860	Morris, Richard C.	New London
258	Morse, George N.	Meriden
2154	Moseley, Harold A.	Thompsonville
1330	Munger, Dr. Edwin H.	Hartford
1969	Murless, Dr. Frederic T., Jr.	Hartford
972	Muzzy, Adrian J.	Bristol
2237	Myers, Edward F.	Madison
1913	Naramore, Charles B.	Bridgeport
861	Naramore, Frank J.	Bridgeport
2332	Nason, Charles R.	Hartford
2336	Neal, Walter H.	Southington
2260	Neifert, William W.	Hartford
1626	Nettleton, Arthur T.	Newtown
1827	Nettleton, David L.	Milford
464	Newton, Charles W.	Hartford
710	Newton, George B.	Hartford
1747	Newton, J. Edward	Durham
1484	Nickerson, Leonard J.	West Cornwall
1748	Nichols, Charles H.	New Haven
1690	Nichols, Frank B.	Waterbury
974	Noble, George B.	Easthampton, Mass.
2023	Noble, Robert R.	Winsted
975	Norcross, Henry F.	Bridgeport
1833	Norcross, J. Arnold	New Haven
1116	Norkett, Frank S.	New London
2147	North, John Richard	New Haven
864	Northrop, Henry E.	Brooklyn, N. Y., 480 Jefferson
1215	Norton, Walter W.	Lakeville
1946	Ober, Dr. George E.	Bridgeport
225	Olmstead, Albert H.	New York, N. Y., 7 W. 43rd St., or Newport, R. I.
1937	Olmstead, G. Frank	East Hartford
1938	Olmstead, Robert D.	East Hartford
1914	O'Neill, Frank B.	Woodbury
2357	Osborn, Clarence F.	New Haven
1674	Osborn, Dr. George W.	Bridgeport
2026	Osborn, John J.	New Haven
2189	Osborn, Stuart R.	Hartford
867	Osborne, Arthur D.	New Haven

No.	Name	Address
528	Osgood, Frederick L.	Norwich
1707	Otis, John M.	Bridgeport
1882	Paine, Frank B.	Bridgeport
2027	Paine, George L.	New Haven
1804	Palmer, Charles S.	New Haven
2349	Palmer, Clarence W.	Stamford
1599	Palmer, Edward C.	Hartford
2278	Palmer, Harry A.	Meriden
1502	Pardee, William O.	New Haven
869	Parker, Charles J.	New Britain
1665	Parker, George A.	Hartford
1161	Parker, Henry F.	Norwich
335	Parker, John D.	Hartford
1939	Parker, John M., Jr.	Hartford
2054	Parker, Samuel C.	Bridgeport
1708	Parraga, Joseph L.	Bridgeport
1761	Parrott, Henry F.	Bridgeport
1589	Parsons, Andrew S.	New Britain
2238	Patterson, Oliver B.	Fairfield
2355	Paulding, Wm.	Fairfield, P. O. Box 365
712	Pearl, Edward	So. Coventry
489	Pearson, Edward J.	Hartford
1523	Peasley, Frederick M.	Waterbury
2249	Peck, Charles S.	Danbury
1849	Peck, George H.	Bridgeport
2074	Peck, George L.	West Haven
1459	Peck, George W.	New Haven
1915	Peck, John L.	West Haven
566	Peck, Miles L.	Bristol
1668	Peck, Milo Lewis	New Haven
2099	Peck, Walter D.	Bridgeport
1850	Peet, Charles H.	Bridgeport
1450	Peet, George C.	Bridgeport
714	Pelton, Dr. Henry H.	New York, N. Y., 345 W. 85th St.
402	Pelton, James H.	Portland
1256	Penfield, Loren D.	New Britain
1533	Pepper, Warren H.	Bridgeport
2129	Perkins, Harry L.	Hartford
2316	Perry, Charles H.	Waterbury
493	Perry, John H.	Southport
2296	Perry, Jr., William B.	Lakeville
1916	Peterson, Herbert	Bridgeport
2075	Pettis, Clinton M.	New Haven
2024	Petty, Rev. Orville A.	New Haven

No.	Name	Address
715	Phelps, Charles G.	Wallingford
1309	Phelps, Dexter E.	Wooster, Ohio
392	Phelps, Rev. Dryden W.	New Haven
2354	Phelps, Frederic H.	Windsor
2215	Phelps, Lancelot	Albany, N. Y., 307 Delaware Ave.
1365	Pickett, Col. Charles W.	New Haven
1284	Pickett, Edwin S.	New Haven
2282	Pickett, Edwin W. S.	Fairfield
2055	Pierce, Frank H.	New Haven
1509	Pierpont, George S.	Center Moriches, L. I., N. Y.
1851	Plant, Morton F.	New York City, Room 3001, 61 Broadway.
1062	Plimpton, James M.	Hartford
1953	Poindexter, Charles E.	Hartford
1310	Pond, Edgar L.	Terryville
567	Pond, Phillip, 2nd	New Haven
568	Pond, Walter	New Haven
1630	Porter, Eugene J.	New Britain
2056	Potter, Burton D.	Hamden
2025	Potter, Matthewson W.	Deep River
1382	Potter, Robert A.	Hartford
641	Powers, Harry S.	South Windsor
1762	Pratt, Walter W.	Hartford
979	Prentis, Dr. Edward	New London
1917	Price, William W.	New Haven
1420	Prince, Christopher E.	New Haven
2159	Prince, Edward A.	New Haven
2229	Prindle, William E.	New Haven
2220	Propson, Carl F.	Southbridge, Mass., American Opti- cal Company
529	Quintard, Charles A.	Norwalk
530	Quintard, Frederick H.	So. Norwalk
2297	Rand, William B.	Salisbury
2230	Ransom, Charles L.	Pomfret Center
2298	Rarey, Charles D.	Hartford
1552	Randall, Herbert	Hartford
1984	Redfield, Dudley W.	Hartford
1959	Redfield, Edward D.	Hartford
657	Redfield, Henry S.	Hartford
1960	Redfield, Hosmer P.	Hartford
914	Redfield, William T.	Hartford
1878	Reid, William H.	Worcester, Mass., 80 Beacon St.
1890	Reynolds, Edwin	Norwich

No.	Name	Address
2082	Rhodes, James E., 2nd	Hartford
1553	Rich, Charles M.	Frankfort, N. Y.
981	Rich, John S.	Frankfort, N. Y., c/o C. M. Rich
1795	Rich, Webster C.	Frankfort, N. Y.
2209	Richardson, Milo B.	Lime Rock
1285	Richmond, William H.	Seranton, Pa., Richmond Hill
1970	Riley, Charles D.	Hartford
1257	Ripley, Charles E.	Hartford
1631	Risley, Charles H.	Garrettsville, Ohio
1332	Ritter, Wallace S.	New Haven
1954	Robbins, Arthur W.	Waterbury
1575	Robbins, Charles S.	Hartford
201	Robbins, Edward D.	New Haven
2231	Robbins, John W.	Hartford
77	Robbins, Philemon W.	Hartford
1421	Roberts, Albert C.	Lakeville
597	Roberts, George	Hartford
598	Roberts, Henry (Hon.)	Hartford
1650	Robertson, A. Heaton	New Haven
117	Robinson, Lucius F.	Hartford
2283	Rockwell, Charles F.	Meriden
719	Rockwell, Charles L.	Meriden
741	Rockwell, George	Waterbury
2148	Rogers, Cephas B.	Meriden
743	Rogers, Ernest E.	New London
393	Rogers, Horace	Norwich
2076	Rogers, Wilbur Fisk	Meriden
1470	Root, Edwin P.	New Haven
414	Root, Dr. Joseph E.	Hartford
242	Root, Judson H.	Hartford
2268	Rosebaugh, Rev. John H.	Springfield, Mass.
1726	Ross, George C.	New Haven
1121	Rowland, Henry L.	Waterbury
1122	Rowland, Herbert S.	Waterbury
1503	Rudd, Charles E.	Asheville, N. C.
1349	Rudd, Malcolm D.	Lakeville
1971	Russell, Eugene F.	Long Meadow, Mass., 220 Long Meadow St.
544	Russell, Gordon	Waterbury
1874	Russell, Harry C.	Bristol
2300	Russell, William P.	Salisbury
1218	Ryder, Ely M. T.	Yonkers, N. Y., 23 Edgecliff Terrace
1647	Sage, George H.	Hartford

No.	Name	Address
217	Sage, John H.	Portland
1988	Sanborn, William A.	Hartford
1563	Sanford, Charles E. P.	New Haven
1163	Sanford, E. Starr (Life)	Greenwich
2232	Satterlee, John Paul	Gales Ferry
768	Savage, George E.	Meriden
1980	Schneller, George O.	Ansonia
1739	Schultz, Edwin W.	New Britain
2130	Scotfield, Harry C.	Stamford
1123	Scott, H. Walter	Hartford
2301	Scoville, Robert	Taconic
1492	Scranton, Charles W.	New Haven
1943	Scranton, William D.	New Haven
1333	Scribner, Edwin M.	Chicago, Ill., 564 W. Monroe St.
2190	Scribner, George Howard	Bridgeport
1852	Seeley, Henry J.	Bridgeport
1511	Seward, Frank	New Haven
1519	Seward, Herbert F.	New Haven
616	Seymour, Dudley S.	Oak Park, Ill., 228 No. Elmwood Ave.
2077	Seymour, Fred B.	Hartford
285	Seymour, George D.	New Haven
617	Seymour, Horace S.	Hartford
1286	Seymour, Robert T.	Hartford
2000	Shailer, Samuel W.	Hartford
917	Sheldon, Charles A.	New Haven
1955	Sheldon, Curtiss L.	New Britain
435	Shepard, James	New Britain
1183	Sherman, Clifton L.	Hartford
1981	Sherman, William A.	Oakland, Cal., 371 28th St.
1243	Sherwood, Henry C. (Life)	Bridgeport
2333	Sherwood, James A.	Easton, Conn.
459	Shipman, Arthur L.	Hartford
1410	Sibley, William	North Windham
1562	Simmons, William S.	Central Village
1219	Simonds, Henry D.	Bridgeport
1790	Simpson, Earnest C.	New Haven
248	Skinner, William C.	Hartford
2239	Slocum, Wellington R.	Hartford
985	Sloper, Andrew J.	New Britain
1920	Sloper, William T.	New Britain
1124	Slosson, Frank S.	Bridgeport
2334	Smith, Albert W.	Bridgeport

No.	Name	Address
1900	Smith, Allison P.	Newtown
2012	Smith, Dr. Appleton W.	Washington, D. C., Garfield Memorial Hospital
1334	Smith, Archer J.	Waterbury
1989	Smith, Arthur J.	Newtown
1504	Smith, Charles H.	Collinsville
2345	Smith, Clarence D.	Rome, N. Y., R. F. D. No. 6
2166	Smith, Edmund B.	Niantic
1819	Smith, Dr. Edward Wier	Meriden
1311	Smith, Ferdinand B.	Norwalk
506	Smith, Frank C.	Middletown
1820	Smith, Frank D.	Meriden
2131	Smith, Frederick M.	Hartford
919	Smith, G. Brainerd	Hartford
1510	Smith, Dr. Henry H.	New Haven
2057	Smith, Herbert Hudson	New Haven
1335	Smith, Joel W. (Life)	East Hampton
1336	Smith, John F.	New Hartford
1126	Smith, Joseph R.	Waterbury
2013	Smith, Louis J.	Hartford
1600	Smith, Louis S.	Middletown
920	Smith, Ralph H.	Waterbury
1601	Smith, Samuel W.	Ansonia
1271	Smith, Walter M.	New Hartford
1657	Smith, William G.	Waterbury
1991	Snell, Harry B.	New Haven
1947	Snow, Herbert W.	New Haven
1896	Snow, Levi T.	New Haven
1948	Southworth, George E.	Bridgeport
1467	Spalding, James A.	Hartford
1993	Spear, George P.	New Britain
1534	Spencer, Alfred, Jr.	Hartford
876	Spencer, Elmer E.	Meriden
2358	Sperry, Ellie N.	<b>Bridgeport</b>
2359	Sperry, Ralph M.	Bridgeport
2290	Sprague, Dr. Charles H.	Bridgeport
2029	Squire, Allan B.	New Haven
328	Squires, Elisha B.	Hartford
137	Stagg, Henry P.	Stratford
1854	Stagg, Joseph H.	Bridgeport
1883	Stagg, William A.	Stratford
2084	Standish, John N.	Bridgeport
1067	Stanley, Alex. W.	New Britain
1632	Stanley Edward N.	New Britain

No.	Name	Address
1471	Stanley, William F.	Dorchester, Mass., 10 Stanton St.
368	Stanton, Dr. John G.	New London
17	Starr, Frank F.	Middletown
2030	Starr, Rev. Harris E.	New Haven
2221	States, James N.	New Haven
1244	Stedman, Lewis H.	Hartford
1221	Steele, Elisha J.	Torrington
1555	Steele, Dr. H. Merriman	New Haven
2216	Stechman, Martin S.	Hartford
588	Steiner, Bernard C. (Life)	Baltimore, Md., 1038 No. Eutaw St.
2031	Steiner, Dr. Walter R. (Life)	Hartford
1556	Sterrett, Harry L.	Bridgeport
727	Stetson, Dr. James E.	New Haven
1856	Stevens, Carleton H.	New Haven
1366	Stevens, Charles W.	Danbury
879	Stevens, Frederick H.	Bridgeport
990	Stevenson, Henry C.	Bridgeport
2132	Stevenson, Maclaren	Stratford
2274	Stivers, Francis E.	Ansonia
882	Stivers, James H.	Stonington
2300	Stivers, Robert R.	Ansonia
330	St. John, Howell W.	Hartford
1897	Stokes, Rev. Anson Phelps, Jr.	New Haven
991	Stone, Charles G.	Hartford
1727	Storrs, Lewis A.	Hartford
2058	Strong, Fred S.	New Haven
2217	Sugden, Arthur W.	Hartford
1651	Sutcliffe, John T.	Waterbury
2155	Swayze, Robert C. (Life)	Torrington
1129	Swift, Edward S.	New Haven
54	Swift, Talmadge	New Britain
1029	Swords, Joseph F.	Dallas, Tex., 200 S. Montreal
2240	Taft, Horace D.	Watertown
2241	Taft, William H., Hon. (Life)	New Haven
2191	Talcott, George S.	New Britain
1477	Talcott, William Hart	Hartford
2361	Tarbox, William G.	Norwich, R. F. D. No. 6
1486	Taylor, Edward	New Haven
1994	Taylor, Edwin P.	Hartford
2014	Taylor, Harry K.	Hartford
2167	Taylor, Henry A.	Milford
1222	Taylor, William O.	Hartford
1891	Thompson, Augustus S.	Yonkers, N. Y., 326 Hawthorne Ave.



No.	Name	Address
2242	Thompson, Charles A.	Melrose
2108	Thompson, Col. Charles E.	Hartford
1692	Thompson, Clarence E.	West Haven
1693	Thompson, Clarence E., Jr.	West Haven
1180	Thompson, Rev. George L.	Brooklyn, N. Y., 975 E. 9th St.
1834	Thompson, Paul S.	New Haven
731	Thomson, Arthur C.	Brookline, Mass., Summer Road
2085	Todd, James E.	New Haven
2001	Todd, James W.	New Haven
572	Tolles, Charles L.	Hartford
1857	Tomlinson, Royal D.	Danbury
1806	Tomlinson, Wilbur F.	Danbury
1658	Townsend, William B.	No. Middlebury
2269	Tracy, Dr. Dwight W.	Hartford
660	Tracy, D. Wallace	Hartford
1729	Tracy, Edwin A.	Norwich
1694	Tracy, Frederick E.	Norwich
1695	Tracy, Hubert D.	Hartford
2302	Tracy, John S.	Falls Village
661	Tracy, L. Howard	Hartford
2192	Trapp, Frederic D.	Hartford
2193	Trapp, H. Beaumont	Hartford
634	Treadwell, John P.	Norwalk
2091	Tremper, Charles W.	New Haven
406	Trowbridge, Francis B.	New Haven
1763	Trowbridge, Frederick L.	New Haven
1223	Trowbridge, Rutherford	New Haven
18	Trumbull, Jonathan (Life)	Norwich
1498	Trumbull, Thomas	Norwich
1512	Turner, George S.	Holmes, N. Y., R. F. D., 18
308	Turner, Luther G.	Torrington
2133	Tuttle, Carlisle B.	Naugatuck
1338	Tuttle, William P.	New Haven
771	Twiss, Waldo C.	Meriden
1030	Tyler, Robert S.	Portland, Me., 82 Park Ave.
2317	Tyler, Dr. Heman A.	Hartford
885	Upham, Charles L.	Meriden
2194	Upson, Chauncey J.	New Haven
318	Upson, Lyman A.	Thompsonville
1678	Upton, E. Lewis	Hartford
2200	Vail, James D.	Chicago, Ill., 3950 Lasalle St.
1339	Van Slyke, W. W.	Chicago, Ill., 358 W. Ontario St.

No.	Name	Address
1766	Van York, John H., Jr.	Bridgeport
992	Veader, Daniel H.	New Haven
1272	Vibbert, Howard C.	New Milford
2134	Wadham, Melville S.	New Haven
1288	Wadsworth, Clarence S.	Middletown
772	Wadsworth, Robert A.	Hartford
1513	Wakelee, George N. (Life)	Southbury
1894	Walker, Charles M.	New Haven
1347	Walker, Elisha H.	Bridgeport
2135	Walker, Frank B.	New Haven
2303	Walworth, Albert E.	Rome, N. Y.
1187	Ward, Frederick S.	New Haven
1168	Ward, Henry C.	Middletown
2350	Warner, Arthur G.	New Haven
2304	Warner, Donald J.	Salisbury
2305	Warner, Donald T.	Salisbury
2318	Warner, Herbert O.	Hartford
2306	Warner, Philip W.	Salisbury
1416	Warner, S. Harris	Middletown
886	Warren, Herbert C.	New Haven
1070	Warren, Tracy B.	Bridgeport
2136	Watrous, Edwin A.	Meriden
591	Watson, Thomas L.	Bridgeport
1961	Way, John L.	Hartford
1525	Weaver, E. Harris	New Haven
1342	Webb, H. Harrison	New Haven
1341	Weed, Ira DeWitt	New Haven
2032	Weed, Smith G.	New Haven
1635	Weeden, Rev. Clarence D.	Washington, D. C. 1843 No. Capitol St.
2319	Weld, Arthur J.	New Haven
1636	Welles, E. Stanley	Newington
1807	Welles, Martin	Hartford
2346	Welling, William C.	Hartford
1722	Wells, Rev. Edward L.	Hartford
1775	Wells, Seymour	Stratford
1592	Wells, William S.	New Haven
1764	Welton, Frank P.	Stamford
1637	Wetherbee, William S.	Middletown
1679	Whaples, Heywood H.	Farmington
4	Whaples, Meigs H.	Hartford
1876	Wheeler, Samuel H.	Bridgeport
1877	White, Albert P.	Winsted

No.	Name	Address
791	White, Herbert H.	Hartford
1724	White, William H.	Waterbury
1765	Whiting, Russell T.	Bridgeport
2347	Whitney, Burke E.	Hartford
371	Whitney, Eli, Jr.	New Haven
1274	Whittemore, Harris	Naugatuck
2195	Whittlesey, Charles B.	Hartford
1275	Whittlesey, Heman C.	Middletown
1411	Wickham, Almeron W.	Gloucester City, N. J., 919 Gaunt St.
1412	Wickham, Clarence H. (Life)	Hartford
1941	Wilcox, Major Frank L.	Hartford
1189	Wilcox, William W., Jr.	Middletown
2060	Wilder, Francis M.	Bridgeport
2150	Wilder, Frank L.	Bridgeport
1778	Wildman, George S.	Bridgeport
1016	Wildman, Major L. D.	Signal Corps, United States Army, Permanent address, Washington, D. C.; temporary address, Fort Leavenworth, Kansas
344	Wiley, J. Allen	Hartford
1972	Willey, Ogden G.	Bridgeport
2151	Williams, Almeron N.	Hartford
1401	Williams, Charles H. (Life)	Thomaston
1444	Williams, Charles M.	Meriden
1265	Williams, Charles S.	Hartford
1922	Williams, Edwin H.	Newton, Mass., 457 Washington St.
265	Williams, Dr. George C. F. (Life)	Hartford
495	Williams, George G.	Farmington
1228	Williams, Harry R.	Hartford
1245	Williams, James S.	Glastonbury
1266	Williams, Philip K.	Glastonbury
1246	Williams, Samuel H.	Glastonbury
1267	Williams, Samuel P.	Hartford
2320	Willis, George S.	Shelton
1072	Wilson, George W.	Hartford
1995	Wood, Alfred B.	Hartford
2015	Woodford, Franklin H.	Hartford
2275	Woodford, William C.	New Britain
1781	Woodruff, Arthur E.	Mt. Carmel
1499	Woodruff, Hon. Rollin S.	New Haven
2087	Woodruff, Watson S.	Orange
1558	Woodruff, William Thomas	Thomaston
1973	Wooster, Edward G.	New Haven
1974	Wooster, Frederick L.	New Britain

No.	Name	Address
1460	Wright, Asahel J.	Hartford
1445	Wright, Ervis E.	Waterbury
1675	Wright, Fayette L.	Pomfret Center
1461	Wright, Rev. Otis Olney	Sandy Hook
2233	Wyman, Henry W.	Hartford
2137	Yates, Blinn Francis	New York City, 55 Cedar St., U. S. Mort. & Trust Co.
1808	Yeomans, Charles S.	New Haven
2100	Yergason, Edgar S.	Hartford
1885	Yergason, Dr. Robert M.	Hartford
1466	York, Samuel A.	New Haven
2244	Young, Cecil G., (Lieut.)	Washington, D. C., War Dept.
1975	Zweygartt, Henry J.	Hartford

## HONORARY MEMBERS

812 Camp	Mrs. Susie Healy	Hartford.
1801 Catchpole	Mrs. E. W. (Alice Rich)	North Rose, N. Y.
828 Faxon	Mrs. Walter C. (Nellie A. White)	Hartford.
643 Griswold	Mrs. Roger M. (Rebecca E. Norton)	Kensington.
353 Hale	Miss Lulia L.	Phillipsburg, Pa., Halehurst.
685 Haynes	Mrs. George H. (Annie B. Chapman)	Worcester, Mass., 7 Otsego Road.
181 Hewins	Miss Caroline M.	Hartford.
1281 Hicks	Mrs. James (Augusta Isham)	Piqua, Ohio.
494 Hill	Mrs. Ebenezer J. (Mary E. Mossman)	Norwalk.
276 Joslyn	Mrs. Charles M. (Minnie Brown)	Hartford.
202 Pitkin	Mrs. Albert H. (Sara H. Loomis)	Hartford.
874 Root	Mrs. Joseph E. (Ella G. Moseley)	Hartford.
1355 Seymour	Mrs. Dudley S. (Alice E. Powers)	Oak Park, Ill., 228 No. Elmwood Ave.
723 Seymour	Mrs. Horace S. (Susan H. Smith)	Hartford.
251 Smith	Mrs. Charles H. (Jane T. Hills)	Hartford.
599 Stevens	Mrs. James L. (Jennie M. Daskam)	Norwalk.
535 Thomas	Mrs. Joseph B. (Anna Hill)	New York, N. Y., Savoy Hotel.
730 Thompson	Miss Rhoda A.	Woodbury.
404 Thomson	Mrs. W. B. (Gertrude Hills)	Hartford.
733 Tyler	Miss Alice J.	Essex.
438 Viets	Mrs. Carl J. (Mary Comstock)	New London.
590 Watson	Mrs. Thomas L. (Alice C. Lyon)	Bridgeport.

## In Memoriam

---

No.	Name	Residence	Date of Death	
1191	Agard, Charles W.	New Bedford, Mass.	May	2, 1913
297	Almy, Dr. Leonard B.	Norwich	September	27, 1913
1145	Anderson, Joseph, Jr.	New Haven	March	26, 1917
1403	Avery, Addison	Norwich	April	9, 1916
1248	Bailey, John H.	Brooklyn	March	23, 1915
1194	Baldwin, Samuel W.	Bridgeport	December	25, 1914
178	Bartram, Isaac N.	Sharon	November	18, 1913
1079	Beckwith, Cyrus G.	New London	November	5, 1914
2005	Beche, Alfred L.	Mystic	June	26, 1914
2006	Beche, William	New Haven	March	11, 1917
2140	Beers, Robert A.	New Haven	April	15, 1916
150	Bidwell, Jasper H.	Collinsville	December	15, 1915
1791	Bigelow, Frank L.	New Haven	June	20, 1917
1500	Bill, Edward L.	New York City	January	1, 1916
2224	Blakeslee, Charles W., Jr.	New Haven	April	28, 1915
1200	Bliss, Walter	Hartford	March	16, 1917
1770	Bolande, Frank W.	Bridgeport	October	15, 1916
1799	Bradley, Gen. Edward E.	New Haven	January	21, 1917
945	Bradley, Nathaniel L.	Meriden	March	15, 1915
678	Brainerd, Frank	Portland	March	6, 1916
1018	Brigham, Frank M.	Rockville	June	25, 1915
227	Brooks, Isaac W.	Torrington	October	17, 1916
947	Brown, George S.	New Britain	December	8, 1913
158	Bull, William L.	New York City	January	2, 1914
247	Burrows, Wilbur F.	Middletown	March	15, 1915
125	Burrows, Wm. H.	Middletown	April	28, 1917
2102	Cheney, Walter B.	South Manchester	March	21, 1913
1233	Clark, Edward L.	New Haven	June	15, 1915
1654	Clark, George B.	Derby	December	22, 1913
1838	Coe, David	Stratford	February	27, 1914
815	Cone, Joseph W.	Hartford	April	9, 1915
2114	Crabtree, Wm. A.	Boston, Mass.	October	21, 1917
1903	Culver, Walter B.	Hartford	June	20, 1917
1586	Cunningham, Joseph B.	New Haven	June	30, 1915
901	Curtis, George M.	Meriden	August	28, 1915
205	Cutler, Ralph W.	Hartford	November	7, 1917
1741	De Pen, Rev. John	Williamstown, Mass.	May	23, 1917
118	Dunham, Sylvester C.	Hartford	October	26, 1915

No.	Name	Residence	Date of Death	
902	English, Benjamin R.	New Haven	December	4, 1915
128	Farnsworth, Dr. Frederic	New London	February	23, 1914
27	Fenn, Linus T.	Hartford	September	26, 1917
2209	Flagg, Charles N.	Hartford	November	10, 1916
1481	Ford, Nelson D.	Winchester Center	May	13, 1915
411	Fowler, Frank S.	Amesbury, Mass.	April	15, 1913
1000	Fox, Dr. Charles J.	Hartford	April	17, 1913
2008	Gallaudet, Dr. E. M.	Hartford	September	29, 1917
203	Goodwin, James J.	Hartford	June	23, 1915
29	Grant, James M.	Hartford	September	3, 1913
839	Griswold, George F.	Niantic	December	15, 1913
1280	Hart, Ferdinand A.	Hartford	December	2, 1913
1544	Havens, Frank W.	Hartford	October	21, 1913
1383	Hewitt, Charles J.	New London	September	15, 1915
385	Hill, Ebenezer	Norwalk	February	26, 1915
295	Hill, Hon. Ebenezer J.	Norwalk	September	27, 1917
252	Hills, J. Coolidge	Hartford	November	8, 1913
143	Hitchcock, Henry P.	Hartford	November	18, 1917
1210	Holmes, Rufus E.	Winsted	May	5, 1913
159	Hooker, Edward W.	Hartford	September	3, 1915
847	Hooker, William G.	Meriden	January	30, 1915
1869	Hotchkiss, Frank D.	Fairfield	December	22, 1916
34	Hovey, Rev. Horace C.	Newburyport, Mass.	July	27, 1914
232	Hyde, Wm. Waldo	Hartford	October	30, 1915
909	Ives, John	Meriden	August	23, 1915
1547	Jackman, George W.	Bridgeport	August	15, 1913
305	Jewell, Lyman B.	Hartford	November	20, 1917
1474	Johnson, Beaumont H.	Winchester Center	January	10, 1916
630	Johnson, Dr. Marcus M.	Hartford	March	15, 1914
584	Judson, Stiles, Jr.	Stratford	October	25, 1914
1112	Kellogg, Wm. W.	Mystic	January	15, 1917
2143	Lane, John S.	Meriden	September	28, 1913
632	Learned, Walter	New London	December	12, 1915
2049	Lee, George H.	Bridgeport	May	31, 1917
2081	Le Pard, Frank H.	Hartford	February	8, 1916
30	Lewis, Dr. John B.	Hartford	April	26, 1914
1816	Lounsbury, Charles H.	Seymour	April	20, 1913
1532	Lupton, Henry W.	New Haven	May	23, 1913
1550	Macdonald, Theodore H.	New Haven	May	24, 1915
2052	Manvel, Frederick C.	Greenwich	February	20, 1916
595	Marcy, Thomas K.	Poquonock	March	2, 1913
2187	Mason, John Z.	New Haven	November	26, 1914
326	Meech, Stephen B.	Norwich	November	18, 1917
855	Merriman, William B.	Waterbury	April	17, 1916
2146	Moseley, Edward E.	Hartford	February	2, 1916
498	Newton, Charles E.	Hartford	November	15, 1917

No.	Name	Residence	Date of Death	
1115	Newton, Henry G.	New Haven	March	21, 1914
865	Norton, Thomas L.	Lakeville	April	25, 1915
1627	Parsons, Charles H.	New Britain	April	13, 1913
1628	Parsons, Dwight A.	New Britain	May	13, 1917
1390	Peck, Eugene B.	Bridgeport	April	27, 1913
1818	Phillips, Andrew W.	New Haven	January	20, 1915
1940	Pitkin, Albert H.	Hartford	October	14, 1917
1024	Preston, Wm. H.	New Haven	December	19, 1915
255	Rembert, John R.	New Haven	September	18, 1913
1998	Robinson, Charles L. E.	Hartford	July	6, 1916
2149	Rogers, Gilbert	Meriden	January	8, 1917
2261	Rowe, Henry B.	New Haven	March	3, 1917
789	Ryder, Henry C.	Danbury	March	17, 1917
1797	Sears, Bradley M.	Mansfield	January	15, 1916
1012	Sillinan, Lewis B.	Bridgeport	June	13, 1914
1441	Smith, Harry A.	New Haven	June	1, 1914
1127	Starr, Jonathan	Terryville	August	5, 1917
1028	Storrs, Samuel P.	New Britain	February	15, 1916
1468	Stratton, Edward C.	Bridgeport	August	27, 1914
1576	Street, Frederick B.	East Haven	March	2, 1914
1029	Swords, Joseph F.	Sulphur, Ok.	July	9, 1917
216	Taylor, Thomas P.	Bridgeport	May	26, 1913
1165	Toqnet, Benjamin H.	Westport	April	4, 1913
1564	Townsend, John W.	New Haven	October	21, 1915
437	Townsend, Dr. Joseph H.	New Haven	January	7, 1916
1712	Tracy, Dr. Dwight	New York City	October	3, 1915
2059	Tracy, Frederick P.	Hartford	September	3, 1915
1068	Treat, Arthur B.	New Haven	December	26, 1913
1224	Tucker, George W.	Colebrook River	April	6, 1916
1131	Upton, Albert S.	Waterbury	August	16, 1914
635	Viets, Carl J.	New London	October	13, 1913
1380	Ward, James A.	New Haven	June	25, 1913
292	Webb, Rodolphus I.	Mystic	March	14, 1913
1432	Wells, Albert S.	Bridgeport	March	4, 1914
1071	Welles, John N.	Wethersfield	March	1, 1914
1289	Wetmore, Charles E.	New Britain	April	26, 1915
1723	White, George L.	Waterbury	December	1, 1914
9828	Winchell, Joseph R.	New Haven	September	14, 1916
1872	Wordin, Dr. Nathaniel E.	Bridgeport	May	10, 1915

## HONORARY

1111	Kellogg, Mrs. Lucia H.	Waterbury	May	4, 1915
596	Phelps, Miss Antoinette R.	Hartford	May	25, 1913
120	Falcott, Mary K.	Hartford	November	17, 1917









LIBRARY OF CONGRESS



0 011 710 575 1

